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1. Name of Property

historic name  Bloomsbury

other names Wellcome Farm, Roger Johnson House  (F-7-18)

2. Location

street & number 2062 Thurston Road (0 not for publication
city ortown _ Frederick X vicinity
state MD code MD county  Frederick code 021 zip code 21701

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this (J nomination (J
request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic
Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property (] meets [J] does
not meet the National Register criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant (] nationally [J statewide [J locally. ((J
See continuation sheet for additional comments).

R e 7 2 o &~ Y-0s
é }gﬂature of certifying office/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property [J meets [] does not meet the National Register criteria. (] See continuation sheet for additional comments).

Signature of certifying office/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4, State/Federal Agency Certification

| he?{ certify that this property is: Sighagure of the Keeper Date of Action
entered in the National Register. /4),‘ W / }
[ see continuation sheet. 7 ' 13 lop

[ determined eligible for the National
Register.

[ See continuation sheet.
[ Determined not eligible for the National

Register.
[ removed from the National Register.

[ other (explain):
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5. Classification

Category of Property
(Check only one box)

Ownership of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply)

X private & building(s)

(J public-local (] district

O public-State O site

(J public-Federal O structure
0 object

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter “N/A” if property is not part of a multiple property listing)

N/A

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count)

Contributing Noncontributing
6 buildings
sites
structures
objects
6 0 Total

number of contributing resource previously
listed in the National Register

0

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

Domestic/ single dwelling

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

Domestic/single dwelling

Agriculture/subsistence/agricultural outbuilding

Agriculture/subsistence/agricultural outbuilding

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions)

Colonial; Georgian

Early Republic: Federal

Narrative Description

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions)

Foundation Stone (sandstone)

Walls Stone (sandstone)

Roof Slate

Other Wood

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets)
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark “x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for
National Register listing)

X A Property is associated with events that have made a
significant contribution to the broad pattern of our
history.

X B Property associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

X C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a
type, period, or method of construction or represents
the work of a master, or possesses high artistic values,
or represents a significant and distinguishable entity
entity whose components lack individual distinction.

(J D Property as yielded, or is likely to yield, information
important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark “x” in all the boxes that apply)

Property is:

(0 A owned by a religious institution or used for religious
purposes.

removed from its original location.

a birthplace or grave.

o O w

a cemetery.

O 000

E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
O F acommemorative property.

(0 G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets)

Area of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions)

Industry

Architecture

Period of Significance

c. 1780-1867

Significant Dates

Significant Person
(Complete if Criterion B is marked above)

Roger Johnson

Cultural Affiliation

N/A

Architect/Builder

Unknown

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets)

Previous documentation on files (NPS):

(O preliminary determination of individual listing (36
CFR 67) has been requested
previously listed in the National Register

designated a National Historic Landmark

recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey

#

recorded by Historic American Engineering Record
#

0 [0O0oao

previously determined eligible by the National Register

Primary location of additional data:

State Historic Preservation Office
Other State agency

Federal agency

Local government

University

Other

Name of repository:

00000
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property 131 acres, 29 perches

UTM References Urbana, MD quad
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet)
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X See continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description
(Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet)

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet)

11. Form Prepared By

nametftitle Paula S. Reed, PhD, Architectural Historian

organization Paula S. Reed and Associates, Inc. date 11/99
street & number 105 N. Potomac Street telephone 301-739-2070
city ortown  Hagerstown state Maryland zip code 21740

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
Continuation Sheets
Maps
A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property’s location.
A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs
Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional Items
(Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner

(Complete this item at the request of SHPO or FPO)

name Ethel W. Loeb
street & number 8100 Connecticut Ave. telephone
city ortown  Chevy Chase state MD zip code 20815

Paperwork Reduction Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a
benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et. seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including the time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of
this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of
Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Project (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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Physical Description:

The Roger Johnson property, known as Bloomsbury, is a farm containing approximately
133 acres located on the west side of Thurston Road, approximately two miles south of Urbana
in Frederick County, Maryland. The farm consists of hilly land, which rises to the southwest
toward the northeast face of Sugar Loaf Mountain. Just off Thurston Road is the farmstead
cluster consisting of a two part sandstone house dating from the 1780s with an early 19" century
addition; a log barn and frame wagon shed; and remnants of log slave quarters located
immediately behind the main house. Situated a short distance to the northeast of the main house
is another small log house believed to have been part of the slave quarters grouping. Also on the
property, located farther north along Thurston Road from the main group, is a 19® century frame
barn.

Main House:

The stone dwelling is constructed of local sandstone and faces southwest. It consists of a
four-bay, two-story section, dating from the 1780s with a one-story kitchen wing extending to
the east. The east wing accommodates a modern kitchen for the dwelling. Attached to the west
end of the four bay section is a two story, two bay addition dating from about 1800. Onto the
west end of this addition was constructed a one story stone and screen sun porch, dating from the
1930s. A stone deck extends out from the four central bays of the house and may have been the
base for a former porch. The stonework appears to date from the early 20™ century. Taken
together, the house presents a balanced fagade with a six-bay-wide two story central block with
one-story wings on each end.

The oldest part of the house has a window, door, window, window pattern across the
front with chimneys inside each end wall. The stones forming the walls are roughly coursed and
fairly small in size, as typical of the 18™ century. There is no distinguishing masonry work such
as segmental arches or jack arches above the windows and doors. Windows have wide mortised
and tenoned frames with pegged joints and hold twelve over twelve light sash at both the first
and second story levels. Of the four bays, the two westernmost are grouped more closely
together than the two eastern bays. The main entrance is located in the second bay from the west
end of the original portion of the house. The door has a wide, mortised and tenoned frame with
double fielded molding and ovalo trim. The door has six raised panels beneath a four light
transom. Entrance lights on either side of the door are former carriage lamps. Inscribed in the
window glass of the window immediately west of the main entrance are the names of James
Johnson, Roger’s son, and his wife Emily with the date 1832.
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Extending to the west from this original section is a two story, two bay addition dating
from about 1800. It, too, has twelve over twelve light window sash within wide mortised and
tenoned frames. The masonry work is similar to that in the older section with relatively small
stones, roughly coursed. A vertical seam in the masonry marks clearly the point here the
addition was attached. The addition has a chimney inside the west gable end. All of the
chimneys are of brick construction. The entire house is roofed with asphalt shingles.

At the rear elevation of the house, there are three bays in the older section (all windows)
and three in the early 19™ century addition, with a door and two windows at the first story level.
All of the rear elevation windows have been replaced with two over two light sash dating from
the late 19" century. The frames also appear to have been replaced with narrower ones.

The interior of the house has the original floor plan and woodwork as well as some early
glasswork in the 1780s section. The front door opens into a formal stair and entrance area, with
a room behind it and two rooms to the east. Each of the first floor rooms in the original section
has its own fireplace. Woodwork in the original section includes double fielded architraves with
ovalo back band and chairrail with bolection molding. Doors have six raised panels. The
exterior door is double surfaced with the exterior face having the six raised, molded panels, and
the interior face being vertical beaded boards. The door is hung on long strap hinges. The lock
is a large cast iron box mechanism mounted on the door surface. It has an oval brass knob. The
staircase is unusually simple with a plain square newel post and a flattened handrail typical of the
late 18" century. Balusters are square and set on the diagonal, arranged three per step. The
stairway rises along the west wall of the original section, then turns and ascends along the north
wall of the stair hall and turns again to complete the run to the second floor.

The most elaborate room is the southeast room, a parlor. Centered in its east wall is a
fireplace with a mantelshelf over a crossetted architrave. On either side of the fireplace are
cupboards with round arched tops and doors with glass panes. The glass for the cupboard doors,
as well as the front windows is said to have come from the Amalung Glassworks, (listed in the
National Register) which was located near Bloomsbury. However, the Johnson family also had a
glassworks, which was located near their iron manufactory. The door to this parlor from the stair
hall has a wrought iron thumb latch.

The northeast room is not as finely detailed as the parlor. It includes in its east wall a
fireplace with a bolection architrave beneath a mantelshelf, a door to the one story kitchen wing
and a cupboard.

Behind the stair hall in the northwest corner of the original part of the house is another
room, smaller than the others. It has a fireplace nearly centered in the west wall with a cupboard
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to the south side and a door leading to the addition on the north side. The fireplace surround
consists of a simple architrave with a mantelshelf above.

The two-story addition to the west of the original section added two rooms at the first
story. The woodwork is influenced by the Federal style and is lighter and more delicate than that
in the older section. The southwest room is the more formal of the two rooms in the addition’s
first story. It contains a fireplace in the west wall and a cupboard beside it. In the room’s north
wall is a doorway leading into the other room in the addition. The fireplace has a mantelshelf
above a wide frieze with carved trim in an oval motif. Along the sides are molded pilasters. The
cupboard has a round arched top and paneled doors. The architrave is double fielded like those
of the 18™ century, but the molding is a smaller ogee rather than the ovalo molding used in the
older section. The chairrail still has bolection molding, but it is smaller than that in the original
part of the house.

The north room of the addition also has a fireplace with a cupboard to the south of it and
a door to the 1930s sun porch to the north side. The fireplace has a simple architrave, wide
frieze and mantelshelf.

The second floor plan approximates that of the first floor.

Other Buildings:

Immediately behind the stone main house is the remnant of what was once a complex of
slave houses. According to a 1933 newspaper article, J.W. Dixon who wrote memoirs about the
Urbana area in the 1850s and ‘60s, described a semicircle of slave houses behind the main
house. Two of these survived until the 1970s when all but the remaining portion of one of the
houses collapsed in a snowstorm. The remaining house is a log structure with its gable end
facing the house. Part of the roof gable has been removed and replaced with a flat shed roof.
Part of the gable structure remains, over a framed extension attached to the north end of the log
portion. Located a short distance behind the site of the slave housing group, but separated by a
steep hill or ravine is another secondary dwelling, similar in form and materials to the remaining
slave quarter. Now a rental house, it may have also been constructed as slave quarters. Itis a
one and a half story, two bay log building with a two bay board and batten frame extension.
Newer concrete block foundations have been placed under the frame section. A shed roofed
porch shelters entrances in the log and frame section.

Located just inside the main entrance to the complex is a grouping of agricultural
buildings including a log barn, a wagon shed and a tractor shed. The log barn, a rare survival of
a once typical structure in central Maryland, is set with the front facing south. The north
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entrance opens into the threshing floor. A shed roofed, framed granary is attached on the west
side of the threshing floor entrance. The whole building is sided with vertical boards. The log
structure is easily observable from the inside of the barn on the threshing floor. The wagon shed,
located east of the barn includes corncribs on either side of the drive through central section.

The building rests on stone piers and probably dates from the early or mid 19" century. The
white painted tractor shed appears to date from the early 20™ century.

Located farther north along Thurston Road is a late 19™ century frame barn of the
“Swisser” type. This 19™ century regional term refers to a barn with a forebay. In this instance,
the forebay rests on stone piers. The vertical board siding has louvered vents at regular intervals
across the front, back and sides. The standing seam metal roof has two square ventilator towers
as well.

Resource Count:

This nomination includes six contributing buildings as follows:
Stone house
Log slave house
Log secondary house (probably also a slave house)
Log barn
Frame wagon shed
Frame Swisser barn

The collection of buildings in their farm setting retains a high level of historical and architectural
integrity.
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Statement of Significance:

The Roger Johnson property, Bloomsbury, is significant under National Register
Criterion A for its association with the history of Frederick County’s 18" century iron industry
and thus the county’s economic and social development. The property derives additional
significance under Criterion B for its association with Roger Johnson, the youngest brother of
Maryland’s first governor, Thomas Johnson. The Johnson brothers, Thomas, James, Baker, and
Roger dominated the industrial development of Frederick County during the late 18" century,
beginning with the establishment of the Catoctin Iron Furnace in 1774, which supplied shot and
ammunition for the Revolutionary War effort. The brothers later established in the county
several forges, including Bloomsbury Forge located 2 mile from the Roger Johnson House, a
second iron furnace, and a glassworks. The Roger Johnson house and associated buildings are
significant also under Criterion C. The house is significant for its late 18" century architectural
stylistic elements, in the late Georgian style, both in its exterior limestone construction and its
interior design and trim. The slave houses are important relics of this type of dwelling in central
Maryland, and the log barn is a rare survival of a once typical barn type, which was later
replaced by the more common Swisser-style barns. While at least three other houses in the
southern Frederick County area are associated with Roger Johnson, (Bloomsbury Forge Farm, F-
7-23, Rock Hall, F-7-2, and the Richard Johnson House, F-7-16), this property served as the
home of Roger Johnson during the height of the Johnson family industries and is the most
elegant and best preserved of these buildings.

Historic Context:

Frederick County’s age of prosperity began following the end of the French and Indian
War in 1763. The prosperity that grew in Frederick County during the late 18™ and early 19"
centuries was the result of agricultural intensification as frontier conditions lessened and farming
and support networks matured. Resulting improvements in transportation systems in turn
facilitated the development of the iron and glass industries. While Frederick County’s
population was dominated on the farms by Germans who migrated into the county from
Pennsylvania, a substantial number of Scotch/Irish and English landowners from eastern
Maryland, mostly well to do members of the upper levels of society moved to Frederick County.
Declining profits from tobacco and reduced opportunities in eastern and southern Maryland
made the central and western portions of the state attractive to old-line families seeking to
relocate and improve their fortunes.

Thomas Johnson, Jr. and his brothers James, Baker, and Roger, were second generation
members of the Johnson family which had emigrated from England early in the 18" century to
St. Leonard’s Creek in Calvert County, Maryland. Thomas began purchasing large tracts of
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land in Frederick County in the 1760s for future development while still in Annapolis working as
a lawyer. At the same time he was cultivating friendships with men like George Washington, a
friendship which would serve to enhance the family’s position not only in the military but also in
their business dealings. The Catoctin Furnace, the first of the Johnson brothers’ enterprises,
produced cannon as well as ammunition for the Revolutionary War effort, a lucrative contract
that set the stage for later developments.” Again, Thomas Johnson’s contacts with the provincial
elite placed the Johnson brothers in leadership positions during the war. Thomas served as
brigadier-general commanding the Third District (Frederick County), and in 1777 was elected
the first Governor of the State of Maryland.?> His brothers followed his lead, Baker was colonel
of the Fourth Battalion, and James, colonel of the Second Battalion, with Roger serving as
James’ second major. It is not surprising to find Roger in the same battalion as his older brother
James. The two were known to have an extremely close relationship. That relationship was
described by James’ son in a letter dated September 1, 1842, “Roger . . . was brought up by my
father and always looked upon him in the light of a father more than a brother.”

The war and the Catoctin Furnace enterprise seems to have kept the Johnson brothers
occupied through the 1770s. Only the Bush Creek Forge, established just southeast of Frederick
City, was added in 1776. The 1780s however, saw a quickening of their industrial
developments. Again, Thomas’ friendship with George Washington undoubtedly played a role
in their pursuits. While local tradition and comments in Scharf’s History of Western Maryland
indicate the Johnson Iron Fumnace, located near the mouth of the Monocacy River, was
established around 1774, William Hutchinson, in his above cited article on the Johnson
industries, makes a fairly well documented argument for its establishment around 1785.
Hutchinson begins by citing a May 17, 1784 petition to the Frederick County Circuit Court, filed
by the Johnson brothers. Under a law passed in 1717 to encourage iron making, the Johnson’s
sought to have the land condemned for the location of their new iron furnace.* When considered
in the light of the Patowmack Company plans being developed by George Washington (first
president of the company) and his friend Thomas Johnson (second president of the company),
such a furnace, located so near the proposed Potomac River transportation system, would be
profitable indeed. The establishment of Roger Johnson’s Bloomsbury Forge, sometime in the

1J. Thomas Scharf, History of Westem Maryland. Vol. 1 (Baltimore: Regional Publishing Co., 1968), first published in Philadelphia, 1882, pp. 135-136, footnote #1,
also William E. Hutchinson, “The Johnson Family Enterprises Near Sugarloaf Mountain,” Journal of The Historical Society of Frederick County, Spring, 1995, p 5.

2Scharf, pp. 138-141.

3Letter written by James Johnson (son of James), Baltimore, Sept. 1, 1842, 1882 copy of letter transcribed by Linda Kemp, Sept. 1972, Johnson vertical file,
Frederick County Historical Society, Frederick, Maryland.

4Hutchinson, p. 7.
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1780s, would most likely have occurred after the Johnson Furnace had begun production,
providing the necessary raw material for the operation of the forge. Again, local tradition and
Scharf date the forge to the earlier 1774 date, however, this early date is unsubstantiated. In
1787, Roger Johnson recorded his purchase of blacksmithing equipment, indicating either the
establishment of a new forge, or the expansion of a forge already in operation.’ It may have been
during this 1780s time period also that the Johnson brothers established a glassworks in the
Bennett Creek area.

Property History:

Thomas Johnson had purchased the land on which the Bloomsbury Forge and the Roger
Johnson House would later be located in 1764. The 2,429 V% acre tract called Resurvey on Right
and Good Reason was a resurvey on a 9 ' acre parcel called Right and Good Reason, belonging
to Solomon Turner, plus 2,420 acres of vacant land. Johnson’s arrangement with Turner, in
which he granted a 1/3 interest in the whole tract to Turner in exchange for the 9 ¥; acres,
allowed Turner to then sell his interest to John Beale Bordley two months later for 250 pounds.
Bordley, a prominent lawyer in Annapolis, was Thomas Johnson’s friend and mentor, as well as
the owner of land bordering the Resurvey on Right and Good Reason. Thomas and his partner
Bordley sold two parcels from the large tract, 378 acres to Abraham Faw, and 569 acres to John
Amelung. In 1791, Thomas Johnson had the remaining acreage resurveyed to 1,788 acres called
Bloomsbury, the allusion to the iron “bloom” a good indication the forge was already located on
the tract.® In 1793, the Johnson brothers divided ownership of their collective enterprises, with
the Bloomsbury Forge and Johnson Furnace going to Roger.’

By the 1780s Roger Johnson was probably living in the area of the Johnson Furnace and
Bloomsbury Forge operations. Roger married Elizabeth Thomas, of Montgomery County, in
February of 1781. Within the year they began their family which eventually included 12
children.® Interior architectural elements of the Roger Johnson House indicate the earliest
section of the house was probably built around 1781 for Roger and his new wife.

5Ibid, p. 11, footnote #22.

6Frederick Co. Land Records, J/170, J/705, ¥/257; also Frederick Co. Survey Record, HGO 1/481, Frederick Co. Courthouse, Frederick, MD.

7Hutchinson, p. 12.

8Johnson Family Genealogy, 1987, Frederick Historical Society, Frederick, MD. Also James Johnson letter, 1842.
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The elevated status of the Johnson brothers in Frederick County society was clearly
visible in the interior details of the house built for Roger and Elizabeth Johnson. No doubt the
house was conveniently located for the supervision of the Johnson brothers’ planned additional
industries in southern Frederick County. By the 1790 U.S. Population Census, Roger was listed
with a wife and eleven children, two “other free” adults (referring usually to free Blacks), and
twenty-nine slaves. Roger’s large family suggests that the later section of the house might have
been added by the time of the 1790 census. The large number of slaves listed also lends
credence to the 1933 Frederick News article in which J.W. Dixon recalled from his childhood in
the 1850s and 60s a number of log slave quarters set in a semi-circle behind the Roger Johnson
house.” Only the remnant of one of these buildings is now extant.

Roger Johnson remained at his home known as “Bloomsbury” until his death in 1831.
Throughout the end of the 18™ century and the early decades of the 19™ century, his lands and
fortunes grew. The 1798 Frederick County tax assessment indicated that Roger was taxed on
4,300 3/4 acres of land, including 1,119 acres of “part of Right and Good Reason.” A notation
on the Right and Good Reason tract reads “New Forge Built last summer.”’® Clearly business
was booming necessitating improvements at the forge. Despite the fact that he was taxed on the
land as early as 1798, Roger did not receive title to the Bloomsbury tract (which was a resurvey
on the Resurvey of Right and Good Reason) from his brother Thomas until 1802."

Roger Johnson’s will, probated in March of 1831, devised the tracts “that lay to South
Side of Bennetts Creek . . . also the lands lying between the Forge and my Mansion house,” to
two of his sons, James T. and Charles Johnson. An 1836 Deed of Partition divided the land by
appointed commissioners. James T. Johnson received the 332 acre “Northern Division,”
including the mansion house, and Charles Johnson was given the 399 acre “Southern Division,”
which included the “Old Forge.”"?

Dr. James T. Johnson and his wife Emily had probably occupied the mansion house at
least since the 1831 death of Roger Johnson. The names of both are inscribed on a window in
the entrance hall of the house. Emily’s inscription is dated 1832. It would have been the later

9Maryland State Historic Sites Inventory Form, Survey No. F-7-18, 1993, p. 7.1; the Dixon article is available at the Frederick Co. Historical Society, Frederick,

101798 Frederick Co. Tax Assessment, “District No. 4, Sugar Loaf & Linganore Hundreds,” microfilm, Frederick Co. Library, Frederick, MD. This acreage

probably should have been listed as Bloomsbury since Bloomsbury was actually a resurvey on the remaining acreage of Resurvey on Right and Good Reason.

11Frederick Co. Land Record, Liber WR 23, Folio 584.

12Frederick Co. Land Record, Liber HS 2, Folio 216; Roger Johnson will, Liber GME 1, Folio 212, cited in Land Record HS 2/216.
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tenancy of James and Emily Johnson that J.W. Dixon recalled from his childhood in the 1850s.
Dixon remembered not only the semi-circle of slave quarters, but also a demolished kitchen and
an “attractive front portico” on the house, which is no longer extant."

The Johnsons remained at the mansion house until James died in 1867. That same year,
Emily sold the house and 133 acres of Bloomsberry (Bloomsbury) and Resurvey on Two
Bachelors to Edmond, Zadoc, and Arnold Windsor. The Windsor family retained the house and
property until 1893. The property then passed through eight owners until it was purchased by
the current owners in 1951 (see chain of title attached). According to tradition, Dr. James
Johnson had a small office building, which was located somewhere in front of the main house.
There is now no visible evidence of such a building.

Property Evaluation:
Criterion A:

Bloomsbury is an excellent collection of resources reflecting Frederick County’s strong
heritage blending industry and agriculture, and the county’s leadership in these areas in the late
18™ and early 19" centuries. The nominated resources are a farm and farmstead, but unlike
many farms in Frederick County, which updated with Swisser barns in the mid 19" century and
then converted to dairy or orchard functions in the later 19" century, this one retained its 18™
century type log barn. Very few of these barns survive today. The property also reflects central
Maryland’s slave culture. Records indicate that Roger Johnson had 29 slaves, and the remaining
slave houses provide good insight into their living conditions. The separate log house may even
have been constructed as a dwelling for manumitted or emancipated slaves, whicli could explain
its visual separation from the “big house” and the cluster of slave dwellings behind it. The main
house exemplifies the life of Frederick County’s elite, the home of a member of one of the
leading families.

Criterion B:

The property is significant for its association with Roger Johnson, youngest son in one of
Frederick County’s and, indeed, Maryland’s leading families. This is the property most
intimately associated with Roger. It is where he made his home from ca. 1781 until his death in
1831. His children were born and raised on this property and it was from here that he managed

13Maryland Survey Form, F-7-18, p. 7.1.
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his vast land and industrial holdings, including at least two iron operations and a glassworks as
well as thousands of acres of farmed land.

Criterion C:

The Bloomsbury property is also significant for its architecture. The house has excellent
woodwork and a high level of integrity reflecting influence of the Georgian and Federal styles.
The vernacular buildings, whicli form the collection of buildings at Bloomsbury are significant
as regional types. The log barn is particularly important as a rare survival of the kind of barn that
was nearly universal in the 18" century in central Maryland. These first-generation buildings
were generally replaced with larger Swisser barns as increasing grain production in the Maryland
wheat belt necessitated more space for threshing and storage of grain and straw. The later
Swisser barn on the property, which is separate from the main complex exemplifies this process.
The slave housing also represents survival of a house type that has become rare in Frederick
County. When their function ceased to exist, these houses were often removed or they simply
deteriorated into oblivion. Few examples of this type of architecture remain today.
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Chain of Title

J/170 28 January 1764 5 shillings
To: Solomon Turner, Frederick Co. planter
From: Thomas Johnson, Jr., Attorney in Annapolis
1/3 interest in whole of Resurvey on Right and Good Reason made over Turner’s original 9 ¥z acre
patent Right and Good Reason plus 2,420 acres of vacant land.

J/705 28 January 1764 5 shillings
To: Thomas Johnson, Jr.
From: Solomon Turner
2/3 interest in 9 Y2 acres called Right and Good Reason

J/257 28 March 1764 250 pounds
To: John Beale Bordley
From: Solomon Turner
1/3 interest in Resurvey on Right and Good Reason

WR 23/584 18 November 1802 497 pounds
To: Roger Johnson

From: Thomas Johnson
2/3 interest in Resurvey on Right and Good Reason of which Roger already owns 1/3 interest, and

Bloomsbury.

Will Book GME 1/212 14 March 1831
Will of Roger Johnson
Devise lands to James T. and Charles Johnson

HS 2/216 11 April 1836
Deed of Partition
To: James T. Johnson
“Northern Division” including 322 acres and the mansion house

Will Book TLMC 1/418 9 September 1867
Will of James T. Johnson
Devise house and land to wife Emily with power to sell and keep the proceeds after debts paid.

DSB 2/32 21 October 1867 $6,656.00
To: Edmond L., Zadoc H., and Arnold H. Windsor
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From: Emily Johnson, widow
133 acres, 1 rood, 20 square perches, part of Bloomsberry and Resurvey on Two Bachelors.

JLI5/63 17 May 1893 $761.81

To: Alexander J. McKenna

From: John H. Kesler and Wm. G. Baker, ex. for Arnold Windsor
131 acres, 29 perches

DHH 1/542 14 May 1898 $3,000.00
To: Margaret Feinour
From: A.J. McKenna and wife

131 acres, 29 perches

DHH 11/451 12 July 1901 $4,000.00
To: Margaret Grinder
From: Lucinda Benson and Annie G. Mitchell, Deed of Trust for Margaret Feinour, dec.

308/500 28 April 1914 $6,000.00

To: Luther A. and Annie P.A. Stang

From: Margaret Grinder and Annie G. Mitchell, spinsters
131 acres, 29 perches

382/75 16 January 1932 $10.00 and other considerations
To: Commercial Bank of Maryland
From: Luther and Annie Stang

385/87 16 July 1932 $10.00 and other considerations
To: Theresa E. and John T. Junk
From: Commercial Bank of Maryland

386/420 27 March 1933 $10.00 and other considerations
To: Philip F. and Margaret W. Lee
From: Theresa and John Junk

131 acres, 29 perches

489/185 21 November 1950 $10.00 and other considerations
To: Paul F. and Isabelle L. Foster
From: Philip and Margaret Lee
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491/335 14 April 1951 $10.00 and other considerations
To: Leon and Ethel W. Loeb

From: Paul and Isabelle Foster
Parcels called Bloomsberry and Resurvey on the Two Bachelors, 131 acres, and 29 perches.
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Verbal Boundary Description:

The nominated area includes the entire property as described in Frederick County Land Records,
Deed book 491, folio 335, for 131 acres and 29 perches of land, the current deed for the property.

Boundary Justification:
The nominated property, approximately 131 acres, represents the remnant of the property

historically associated with the resource. It is essentially the same acreage that was sold by
Emily Johnson, James T. Johnson’s widow, in 1867, and has retained integrity of appearance and

function since that date.
UTM References:
A: 18-296460-4353430

18-295530-4352720

w

18-295220-4352940

18-295240-4353280

w9 Q

18-295720-4353680



